
 

 

 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE AND AGENDA OF THE WEST BRANCH CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING SCHEDULED TO CONVENE AT 7:00 P.M. TUESDAY, JANUARY 2, 

2018 IN THE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 110 NORTH POPLAR STREET, 

WEST BRANCH, IOWA 
 
Mayor Roger Laughlin mayor@westbranchiowa.org 
Mayor Pro Tem Colton Miller mcolton@rocketmail.com 
Council Member Jordan Ellyson Jordanellyson@gmail.com 
Council Member Brian Pierce brianapierce@outlook.com 
Council Member Jodee Stoolman j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com 
Council Member Nick Goodweiler nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com 
City Administrator Redmond Jones II rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org 
City Attorney Kevin Olson kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com 
Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick   leslie@westbranchiowa.org 

 
Please note:  Most written communications to or from government officials regarding government business 

are public records available to the public and media upon request.  Your e-mail communications may 

therefore be subject to public disclosure. 
 

AGENDA 

 

A. Call to Order 

 

B. Opening Ceremonies 
 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 
2. Welcome 

 

C. Roll Call 

 

D. Guest Speaker, Presentations and Proclamations   
1. Department Presentations (Budget) 

a. Library 
b. Police Department 

 
E. Public Comment 

Anyone wishing to address the City Council may come forward when invited; please state your 

name and address for the record. Public comments are typically limited to three minutes, and 

written comments may be submitted to the Deputy City Clerk. Special instructions for public 

comments will be provided at the meeting if a public hearing or quasi-judicial matter is scheduled 

on the agenda. 

 

F. Approve Agenda / Consent Agenda / Move to Action 
Routine items and items not anticipated to be controversial are placed on the Consent Agenda to 

expedite the meeting.  If a Council member, staff member or member of the Public wishes to 

discuss any item on the Consent Agenda, they can request the item be removed from the Consent 

mailto:mayor@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:mcolton@rocketmail.com
mailto:Jordanellyson@gmail.com
mailto:brianapierce@outlook.com
mailto:j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com
mailto:nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com
mailto:rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com
mailto:leslie@westbranchiowa.org


 

 

Agenda for discussion.  The remaining items on the Consent Agenda will be voted on with one 

motion being made for all items on the Consent Agenda 
 

1. Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Meeting December 18, 2017. 
2. Resolution 1678 – A Resolution Adopting a Policy Authorizing the City Clerk or Deputy City 

Clerk to Pay Certain Bills Prior to the City Council’s Approval.  
3. Approve Claims Report. 

 

G. Public Hearing / Non-Consent Agenda 
 
1. Motion to Approve Authorizing the City Administrator to pay $300 to the West 

Branch Community Development Group (CDG) for a welcome sign to be installed on 
the side of their building. 

2. Resolution 1675 – Approving a 48 Month Lease Agreement with Koch Brothers on a 
Lanier MPC 4504 Ex-copier for $257.00 Per Month Plus a Quarterly Service Charge 
Based on the Number of Copies. 

3. Motion – Accepting the City of West Branch, Iowa FY 2018-19 Budget Timeline. 
4. Motion – Accepting the City Council Meeting Calendar 
5. Discussion – Regarding Casey’s Development Agreement and Recent DNR Notice of 

Contaminated Area 
6. Public Hearing: Proposed Contracts 

 

H. Reports 
 

1. City Administrator’s Report 
2. City Attorney Report 
3. Other Staff Hearsays 

 

I. Comments from Mayor and Council Members 

 

J. Adjournment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

The following is a synopsis of the minutes of the West Branch City Council meeting. A video recording is available for 

inspection on the City of West Branch Website at www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos. The minutes are not 

approved until the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting.) 

 

West Branch, Iowa                                     City Council Meeting                               December 18, 2017  
Council Chambers                                                                                                      7:00 p.m. 

  
Mayor Roger Laughlin called the West Branch City Council meeting to order at 7:05 p.m.  Mayor Laughlin  invited the 

Council, Staff and members of the audience to stand and led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance.   Roll call: Mayor 

Laughlin was present.  Council members:  Colton Miller, Tim Shields, Mary Beth Stevenson, Jordan Ellyson and Brian 

Pierce were present.  Laughlin welcomed the audience and the following City staff: City Administrator Redmond Jones, 

Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick, Finance Officer Gordon Edgar, Library Director Nick Shimmin, Park & Recreation 

Director Melissa Russell and Police Chief Mike Horihan. 

 

GUEST SPEAKER, PRESENTATIONS, AND PROCLAMATIONS 

 

Alliant Energy Community Annual Report 

Josh McKnight, Alliant Energy presented Alliant Energy’s Community Annual Partnership Report which included 

support of various programs. 

 

Acknowledgement of Service (Councilperson Stevenson) 

Laughlin presented a proclamation to Stevenson and thanked her for her service. 

 

Acknowledgement of Service (Councilperson Shields) 

Laughlin presented a proclamation to Shields and thanked him for his service. 

 

Swearing-In City Councilperson Elect (Nick Goodweiler) 

Swearing-In City Councilperson Elect (Jodee Stoolman)  

Laughlin swore in the new council members and welcomed them to the Council. 

 

Swearing-In City Mayor Elect (Roger Laughlin) 

Mayor Pro Tem Miller gave the oath of office to Laughlin. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

No comments. 

 

APPROVE AGENDA/CONSENT AGENDA/MOVE TO ACTION 
Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Meeting December 4, 2017. 

Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for Joint City Council and Planning and Zoning Meeting November 29, 2017.   

Motion to Accept the Resignations from Various Board and Commission Members. 

Motion to Accept the Reappointments / Appointments to Various Boards and Commissions. 

Motion to Approve the Final Pay Estimate (No. 3) for the First Street Improvements Project. 

Resolution 1674 – Adding “GIS Capabilities to Public Works” as a high priority to the 2018-19 Goals and Objectives 

list.  

Approve Claims Report. 
 
EXPENDITURES-CORRECTED    12/18/2017  
    
ALBAUGH PHC INC.     ALBAUGH PHC INC.     202.50  
ALLIANT ENERGY     WATERTOWER     143.49  
AMAZON     BOOKS      391.05  
BAKER & TAYLOR INC.    BOOKS      1,275.77  

http://www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos


 

 

BARRON MOTOR SUPPLY    SUPPLIES      556.40  
CAJ ENTERPRISES INC    HAULING ROADSTONE    145.60  
CEDAR COUNTY RECORDER    RECORDING FEES     14.00  
CEDAR RAPIDS PHOTO COPY IN   COPIER SUPPLIES    83.15  
CREDIT MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS   DEBT COLLECTION SERVICE    7.02  
CULLIGAN WATER TECHNOLOGIE   WATER SOFTENER SERVICE    39.15  
D&R PEST CONTROL    PEST CONTROL     70.00  
DEWEYS JACK & JILL    SUPPLIES      7.98  
EAST CENT INTERGOVT ASN.    DUES 1-1-18 TO 6-30-18    743.04  
FEHR GRAHAM     308 PV PARK IMP DESIGN    4,037.09  
GALAXY CLEANING SERVICES    GALAXY CLEANING SERVICES    1,278.10  
HD CLINE COMPANY    EQUIPMENT REPAIR     207.13  
HEIMAN FIRE EQUIPMENT    HEIMAN FIRE EQUIPMENT    874.79  
HOTSY CLEANING SYSTEMS    SUPPLIES      165.00  
IMWCA      IMWCA      5,143.00  
JOHNSON COUNTY REFUSE INC.   RECYCLING NOV 2017     3,823.75  
JOURNEYED COM INC    SOFTWARE LICENSE     152.31  
LINN COUNTY R.E.C.    SIREN @ GREENVIEW     137.30  
LYNCH'S PLUMBING INC    REPLACE CURB STOP     658.50  
LYNCH, RYAN OR LINDSEY    BUILDING INCENTIVE PAYMENT    166.89  
MATT PARROTT/STOREY KENWOR   RECEIPT BOOKS     207.87  
MENARDS     BUILDING      796.13  
MIDWEST FRAME & AXLE    VEHICLE REPAIR OSH KOSH    722.47  
MIKE OR LYN REDINGTON    BUILDING INCENT REIMBURSEMENT   778.16  
CEDAR COUNT FREEDOM ROCK   DONATION     128.00  
MUNICIPAL SUPPLY INC.    WATER METERS,SUPPLIES    2,460.00  
OFFICE EXPRESS     OFFICE SUPPLIES     289.18  
ORIENTAL TRADING CO. INC.    REC SUPPLIES     199.62  
OVERDRIVE INC     BOOKS      765.45  
PITNEY BOWES GLOBAL FINANC   COPIER LEASE LIBRARY    102.39  
PITNEY BOWES PURCHASE POWE   REPLENISH POSTAGE METER    1,005.00  
QUILL CORP     OFFICE SUPPLIES     210.00  
RIVER PRODUCTS COMPANY INC   ROADSTONE     240.20  
STATE HYGIENIC LAB    LAB ANALYSIS     52.00  
U.S. POSTAL SERVICE    PO BOX RENTAL     76.00  
US BANK CORPORATE CARD    TRAINING, LIBRARY SUPPLIES    572.51  
USA TODAY     SUBSCRIPT 12-1-17 TO 11-30-18    339.87  
WALMART COMMUNITY/RFCSLLC   LIBRARY & REC SUPPLIES    350.27  
WEST BRANCH ANIMAL CLINIC   BOARDING IMPOUNDED ANIMALS   675.00  
WEST BRANCH COMMUNITY SCHO   ADVERTISING     100.00  
WEST BRANCH FAMILY PRACTIC   SPECIMEN COLLECTION FEE    40.00  
WEST BRANCH TIMES    LEGAL PUBLICATIONS, ADVERTISING   1,079.12  
    
TOTAL             31,512.25  
    
PAID BETWEEN MEETINGS    
    
CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL    LIBRARY AND PARK & REC SUPPLIES   181.93  
FUTURE LINE TRUCK EQUIPMENT   VEHICLE REPAIR     3,597.20  
JULIA HIME     VIDEOGRAPY SERVICES    150.00  
IOWA DNR     WASTEWATER EXAM FEE    30.00  
NICK SHIMMIN     PROGRAM SUPPLIES     13.00  
VISU-SEWER INC     316 I & I LINE/GROUT PHASE 2    6,209.10  
JENNA DAVIS     UTILITY REFUND     32.90  
US BANK EQUIPMENT FINANCE   COPIER LEASES     300.80  
    
TOTAL            10,514.93  
    
PAYROLL 12-15-17           52,118.53  
FIRE DEPARTMENT PAYROLL 12-15-17         37,845.98  
    
TOTAL EXPENDITURES          131,991.69  
 
FUND TOTALS    
001   GENERAL FUND   65,878.51  
022   CIVIC CENTER   239.40  



 

 

031   LIBRARY    9,924.00  
036   TORT LIABILITY   4,751.02  
110   ROAD USE TAX   8,232.07  
112   TRUST & AGENCY   14,659.24  
308   PARK IMP - PEDERSEN VALLEY   4,037.09  
316   I & I LINE/GROUT PH 2   6,209.10  
600   WATER FUND    10,755.05  
610   SEWER FUND    7,306.21  
    
GRAND TOTAL    131,991.69 
 

Motion by Pierce, second by Stevenson to approve agenda/consent agenda items.  AYES:  Pierce, Stevenson, Miller, 

Ellyson, Shields.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 
 

PUBLIC HEARING/NON-CONSENT AGENDA 

Motion to Approve a Request to Conduct a Controlled Burn of the Current Club House the Cedar’s Edge Golf 

Course./Move to action. 

Jerry Sexton, owner of Cedar’s Edge Golf Course said the burn would take place at the end of January or early February.  

The West Branch Fire Department will use this as practice burn. 

Motion by Miller, second by Shields.  AYES:  Miller, Shields, Stevenson, Pierce, Ellyson.  NAYS: None.  Motion 

carried.   

 

Motion to Approve Authorizing the City Administrator to pay $300 to the West Branch Community Development 

Group (CDG) for a welcome sign to be installed on the side of their building./Move to action. 

Miller noted that the building where CDG is currently located is for sale and expressed his concern on what would 

happen to the sign should CDG change locations and the new owners want the sign removed.  Other council members 

expressed the same concern but felt the sign was a good idea for that location.  However with an uncertain future, they 

would like more assurance that the sign if placed, would remain and suggested that the item be tabled for more 

information.  Laughlin said he would get more information on the sign placement and other possible locations. 

Motion by Miller, second by Shields to table this item for more information.  AYES:  Miller, Shields, Pierce, Ellyson, 

Stevenson.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

Public Hearing regarding Amending the Current Budget for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30. 

Laughlin opened the public hearing at 7:38 p.m.  There were no public comments.  Public hearing closed at 7:39 p.m. 

 

Resolution 1673 – Amending and Certify the Current Budget for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018./Move to 

action. 

Motion by Stevenson, second by Pierce to approve Resolution 1673.  AYES:  Stevenson, Pierce, Ellyson, Miller, 

Shields.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

Resolution 1675 – Approving a 48 Month Lease Agreement with Koch Brothers on a Lanier MPC 4504 Ex-copier for 

$257.00 Per Month Plus a Quarterly Service Charge Based on the Number of Copies./Move to action. 

Edgar presented the new agreement which would include a new machine providing the same services as the existing 

machine. Edgar said the current agreement would be expiring in January.  Miller asked if an option to purchase the 

current machine was discussed with the vendor in addition to signing a new lease.  Edgar replied that he did not have 

that conversation with the vendor.  Miller and other council members felt that a purchase option should be obtained 

from the vendor so that they had all reasonable information to make a decision. 

Motion by Stevenson, second by Shields to table Resolution 1675.  AYES:  Stevenson, Shields, Miller, Pierce, Ellyson.  

NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

Resolution 1676 – Approving the Wage Works Flexible Spending Account Renewal for February 1, 2018 – January 

31, 2019./Move to action. 



 

 

Edgar reported that the administrative fee was not changing for this benefit and recommended accepting the renewal. 

Motion by Miller, second by Pierce to approve Resolution 1676.  AYES:  Miller, Pierce, Ellyson, Stevenson, Shields.  

NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

Resolution 1677 – Approving Annual Insurance Renewals with Wellmark Blue Cross Blue Shield of Iowa for Health 

and Dental Insurance./Move to action 

Edgar reported that this year’s increase was 9.38 percent, which includes a 3.4 percent Affordable Care Act 

administrative fee.  Edgar reminded the Council that the plan year was changed to February 1st per their request during 

last year’s budget.  This change did make receiving the rates sooner to help with budgeting for FY19.  Edgar also noted 

that he had met with Insurance Associates who is interested in being the city’s broker of record for employee benefits.  

Jones said that other brokers have reached out to the city and that he would coordinate with those brokers to make 

presentations to the Council in 2018. 

Motion by Shields, second by Miller to approve Resolution 1677.  AYES:  Shields, Miller, Ellyson, Pierce, Stevenson.  

NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

Motion – Accepting the City of West Branch, Iowa FY 2018-19 Budget Timeline./Move to action. 

Jones presented the proposed budget timeline and highlighted so important target dates.  Jones said that based on last 

year’s meeting schedule, work sessions may again be necessary.  Council requested a few date changes and asked 

Jones to bring back a revised schedule and tabled this item to the next meeting. 

Motion by Shields, second by Stevenson to table this item.  AYES:  Stevenson, Shields, Ellyson, Miller, Pierce.  NAYS:  

None.  Motion carried.   

 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT  
Jones gave a brief update on the past week’s activities and upcoming holiday office closures.  Jones attended the Meet 

the Press event in Tipton last week and met with several neighboring community leaders.  Jones said the purpose of 

the meeting was to discuss/review the multi-jurisdictional hazard mitigation plan. 

 

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT 

Olson reported that he had drafted an ordinance amendment on the Planned Unit Development (PUD) for the Mayor 

and City Administrator to review.  Olson said acquisition agreements were mailed out this week to residents in the 

College Street Bridge project area. 

 

COMMENTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS  
Councilperson Pierce thanked Stevenson and Shields for their service on the council for the past four years and he 

welcomed Stoolman and Goodweiler.  Stevenson expressed her gratitude to the council and said that although there had 

been many disagreements on topics over the years, all remained civil and issues were able to be worked through.  Shields 

thanked the city staff, citizens of West Branch and the council for their support over the past four years and said that he 

learned a lot.  Shields thanked Ellyson, Miller and Pierce for their ongoing efforts. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion to adjourn regular meeting by Shields, second by Stevenson.  Motion carried on a voice vote.  City Council 

meeting adjourned at 8:19 p.m. 

   

 

                           _________________________________________  

                                          Roger Laughlin, Mayor  

 

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________________________________ 

                   Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk  



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  January 2, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1678 – A Resolution Adopting a Policy Authorizing the 

City Clerk or Deputy City Clerk to Pay Certain Bills Prior to the 

City Council’s Approval.   

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Officer 

DATE:  December 20, 2017 

     

BACKGROUND: 

This is a routine item that is approved once a year it allows staff to take care financial items 

that relate to council approved items and/or other day to day operational disclosures. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

 Consent Item 2 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1678 

 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A POLICY AUTHORIZING THE CITY CLERK 

OR DEPUTY CITY CLERK TO PAY CERTAIN BILLS PRIOR TO THE CITY 

COUNCIL’S APPROVAL. 

 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of West Branch, Iowa: 

 

Section 1. The City Council hereby establishes the following policy authorizing the City 

Clerk or Deputy City Clerk to pay the following bills prior to the City Council’s 

approval: 

 

 Utility Deposit Refunds 

 Payroll 

o Payroll taxes and other checks relative to the Payroll (such as garnishments, 

insurance, etc.) 

 Postage 

 Library Bills approved by the Library Board of Trustees 

 Recycling Contract 

 Conferences 

o Registration fees, mileage, meals, books and lodging 

 Employee Reimbursements 

 Recording and Filing Fees 

 Loan and Bond Payments 

 Authorize the City Clerk or Deputy City Clerk to issue checks for immediate payment 

of amounts due, which if not paid promptly would result in loss of discount, penalty 

for late fee or additional interest cost. 

 

Section 2. All Resolutions or parts of Resolutions in conflict with the provisions of this 

resolution are hereby repealed. 

 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED, this 2nd day of January 2018. 

 

 

            

      ____________________________________ 

       Roger Laughlin, Mayor  

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk   

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  January 2, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve the Claims Report 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Officer 

DATE:  December 20, 2017 

     

BACKGROUND: 

These are routine expenditure that include such items as payroll, budget expenditures, and 

other financial items that relate to council approved items and/or other day to day 

operational disclosures. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Claims Report 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

 

 Consent Item 3 



 

 

   



 

 

 

 

 
   

 

 

 
  



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  January 2, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve Authorizing the City Administrator to pay $300 

to the West Branch Community Development Group (CDG) for a 

welcome sign to be installed on the side of their building. 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

DATE:  December 29, 2017 

     

BACKGROUND: 
 
The mission of the West Branch Community Development Group (CDG) is to improve 

the social and economic well-being of our community by discovering and utilizing the 

unique identity, assets, and character of West Branch and the Historic Main Street 

District using the National Main Street Four Point Approach.  The CDG would like the 

city to share in the cost of signage on the building of which they have office.  $300 is 

being requested and the sign will have the city logo displayed.   

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek Council Approval / Direction 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 1 



 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  January 2, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1675 – Approving a 48 Month Lease Agreement with 

Koch Brothers on a Lanier MPC 4504 Ex-copier for $257.00 Per 

Month Plus a Quarterly Service Charge Based on the Number of 

Copies. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edger, Financial Officer 

DATE:  December 29, 2017  

     

BACKGROUND:  

 

The current copier lease expires in January, 2018.  Four companies provided quotes for a 

new copier lease agreement.  The companies were told to provide the existing features on 

the new unit.  The Lanier and Ricoh models are the same machine, with just a different 

name.  The Lanier unit that we have has been problem free and we expect that degree of 

reliability with the new unit. The monthly lease cost of the Lanier is slightly lower than the 

other units. 

 

This item was tabled to allow staff to further investigate purchase options. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution / Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Non Consent Item 2 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1675 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A 48-MONTH LEASE AGREEMENT WITH 

KOCH BROTHERS ON A LANIER MPC4504EX COPIER FOR $257.00 PER 

MONTH PLUS A MONTHLY SERVICE CHARGE BASED ON NUMBER OF 

COPIES. 

 

WHEREAS, the City of West Branch Administration Department has a copier on 

a lease agreement that will expire in January of 2018; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Administration Department accepted quotes from four companies 

for a lease agreement for a copier that has the same features as the present unit; and 

 

WHEREAS, a 48-month agreement with Koch Brothers for a Lanier copier with 

the same features was selected as the best proposal. 

  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of West 

Branch, Cedar County, Iowa, that the aforementioned agreement with Koch Brothers be 

and the same are hereby approved. Further, the Mayor and City Clerk are directed to 

execute said agreement on behalf of the City.  

 

 

* * * * * * * * 

Passed and approved this 2nd day of January, 2018.  

 

 

 

______________________________  

Roger Laughlin, Mayor   

 

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

_____________________________________  

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  January 2, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion – Accepting the City of West Branch, Iowa FY 2018-19 

Budget Timeline.  

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  December 29, 2017  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Click here to enter a date. 

Click here to enter text. 

Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, neighborhoods, including 

partnering with the school district. 

Click here to enter text. 

Click here to enter a date.  
 Click here to enter text. 
  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seeking Council Direction 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 Non Consent Item 3 

The attached budget timeline is a tentative scheduled aimed to result in the Adoption and Certification 

with the County Auditor by March 15.  Early indications suggest that our 2018-19 budget will be tight 

budget year.  Therefore, initial Department Budgets have started with three options: 
 

1. A 5% reduction from current year budget. 

2. A Status Quo Budget which reflects no change.  (It should be noted that operational cost have risen; 

therefore a Status Quo Budget is still essentially a reduction) 

3. A 3% increase or enhancement Budget.  This helps determine options for enhancement in lean fiscal 

budget(s). 
 
We expect anywhere between 2.2% - 4.2% increase in our cost of business.  With healthcare and cost of 

living being the driving factors.  Capital Improvements have impacted our liquidly; however with our 

recent bond transactions, and future inter fund transfers, the city position in this regard has gotten better.  

On the other side of that preverbal coin, the city will have to practice stick financial planning in order to 

meets its debt obligations in the coming years.  This is of particular importance in the next 3 budget years. 

 

For this reason, in preparation of this year’s budget we strive to involve the following goals: 

 Structural Balance – we do not want to over rely on general fund (financial diversity – including 

User Fees that represent cost of service and new revenue streams) 

 Disciplined Capital Improvement Approach 

 Fund Balance Policy / Begin a Reserve Program (that incrementally targets three month of 

operation)  

 



 

 

 
 

City of West Branch, Iowa FY 2018-19 Budget Timeline 

 

November 

Goal Setting 
1) Work session to establish Goals and Objectives (November 20) 
2) Resolution Adopting / Approving the Goals and Objectives for the FY 2018-19 

(December 4) 
3) Department one on one meetings with the City Administrator (Oct. – Nov.) 

 

December 

Budget Activities 
1) Fiscal Outlook review of accomplishments, innovations / efficiency improvements, fiscal 

condition, revenues, expenditures, assumptions, and uncertainties. 
2) Follow up – Department one on one meetings with the City Administrator 
3) Insurance / Tentative Employee Pay Plan Starting Estimates  (December 18) 

 

January 

Budget Activities / Work Session 
1) Motion to Accept 2018-19 the Budget Preparation Schedule (January 2) 
2) Presentation of initial general fund revenue estimates (January 2) 
3) Department Director Budget Presentations (Jan. 2 – Jan. 16) 
4) Initial General Fund Revenue Estimate / Work session (January 16) 
5) City Council Approve a Salary Plan / Debt Payment (Special Meeting January 22) 

 

February 

Budget Activities / Work Session 
1) 6:00 pm  Work Session non-salary expenditures (February 5) 
2) 7:00 Council approves initial revenue estimates for all other funds (February 5) 
3) 7:00 pm Council approves non-salary expenditures (February 5) 
4) Special Meeting Workshop (if needed for any unresolved approvals / Items) (February 12) 
5) 7:00 pm Council receives and adopts final proposed budget and other notice of hearing 

(February 20) 
6) Notice of Hearing on Adoption of final budget.  (February 20 – the notice is not to be 

published more than 20 days, and not less than 10 days of the hearing date.) 

 

March 

Budget Activities 
1) Public Hearing and Adoption of Budget (March 5) 
2) Final Budget Certification with County Auditor (March 15th) 

 

June 
1) IDOM certifies taxes back to county auditor (June 15) 

 

July 1 
2) Budget takes effect 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  January 2, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion – Accepting the City Council Meeting Calendar   

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  December 20, 2017  

     

BACKGROUND:   

The City Council Meeting Calendar includes an additional meeting day in July in order to 

allow for claims to be paid.  This meeting has historically not been in place but the lack of 

the meeting has created difficulties in getting payments made in a timely matter in the past. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek Approval from the City Council on this topic 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 Non Consent Item 4 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

  
 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  January 2, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion – Casey’s General Store Site on 311 East Main Street 

Environmental Issues and Casey’s Development Agreement 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  December 20, 2017  

     

BACKGROUND:  

 

DNR has informed the City that the vacated Casey’s General Store site on 311 East Main 

Street is contaminated with petroleum.  Therefore, it will be required to have a tiered site 

assessment in order to ascertain the level of the contamination.  DNR defines the purpose 

of Tier 3 Assessment (Tier 3) as an assessment of the risk of exposure to the chemicals of 

concern using other chemical fate and transport models or alternative assessment 

methods.  A Tier 3 assessment is intended to provide additional risk assessment data. 

 

What to make of this? This would indicate that Casey’s has a long way to go to meet the 

terms of their Development Agreement with the City (property resale and demolition).  In 

fact, some may argue that Casey’s is currently already outside of the development 

agreement terms; therefore, should result in discontinuing or absolving any rebate 

obligation of the city.  This is certainly something that deserves more discussion and a 

legal review.  Our development agreement with Casey’s represents $25,000 for 20 years 

debt obligation.  This would equate to $500,000 total. 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Discussion Look for Direction Regarding Next Steps 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 Non Consent Item 5 



 

 

 

 

  
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  January 2, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Public Hearing Regarding the Plans and Specs for Cubby Park.  

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Melissa Russell, Parks and Recreation Director 

DATE:  December 22, 2017  

     

BACKGROUND:  
Nate Kass of Fehr Graham has suggested a timeline for the bid letting process for Cubby Park.   
 
December 4 (regular meeting) – approve plans and specs; set dates for hearing and letting 
December 5 – issue plans and specs to contractors (mail notices) 
Publish notice between December 23rd and 28th.  This week the West Branch Times will not run a 
paper due to the Holidays so it may be best to publish in the Times December 14th and 
December 21st. This would meet the 4-20 day notice for the notice requirements. 
January 2 (regular meeting) - public hearing on plans and specs 
January 11 – letting 
January 15 (regular meeting) – review bids and award 
 
It is the intent of Fehr Graham let the contractor start as soon as he wants after the contracts are 
signed/approved. They plan to have the ball field seeding down and grow-in plan begun by June 
15. The overall project is to be fully completed by November 2. 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Conduct a Public Hearing 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 
 
 

Non Consent Item 6 



 

 

 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

JURISDICTION OF CITY OF WEST BRANCH 
CUBBY PARK IMPROVEMENTS 

PROJECT No. 16-072 
 
 
Public Hearing on Proposed Contract Documents and Estimated Costs for Improvement.  
A public hearing will be held by the City Council of West Branch on the proposed 
contract documents (plans, specifications and form of contract) and estimated cost for 
the improvement at its meeting at 7:00 P.M. on January 2, 2018, at City Hall, West 
Branch, Iowa. 
 
 
 

This Notice is given by authority of the City of West Branch. 
 
 

____________________________________________ 

Roger Laughlin, Mayor 
 
 

Attest: ____________________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

 

 
 

Published in West Branch Times 
 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
NOTICE TO BIDDERS AND 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
JURISDICTION OF CITY OF WEST BRANCH 

CUBBY PARK IMPROVEMENTS 
PROJECT No. 16-072 

 
Time and Place for Filing Sealed Proposals.  Sealed bids for the work comprising each 
improvement as stated below must be filed before 10:00 A.M. on January 11, 2018, in 
the Office of the City Clerk (City Hall), City of West Branch, Iowa. 
 
Time and Place Sealed Proposals Will be Opened and Considered.  Sealed proposals will be 
opened and bids tabulated at 10:00 A.M. on January 11, 2018, at West Branch City Hall 
for consideration by the City Council at its regular meeting at 7:00 P.M. on January 15, 
2018 at City Hall.  The City of West Branch reserves the right to reject any and all bids. 
 
Time for Commencement and Completion of Work.  Work on the improvement may be 
commenced upon approval of the contract by the Council, and be completed as stated 
below. 
 
Bid Security.  Each bidder shall accompany its bid with bid security as security that the 
successful bidder will enter into a contract for the work bid upon and will furnish after the 
award of contract a corporate surety bond, in form acceptable to the Jurisdiction, for the 
faithful performance of the contract, in an amount equal to one hundred percent of the 
amount of the contract.  The bidder’s security shall be in the amount of 5% of the total 
bid amount including all add alternates, and shall be the Jurisdiction’s bidder’s bond 
with corporate surety satisfactory to the Jurisdiction.  No other type of bid security 
will be accepted.  The bidder’s bond shall contain no condition except as provided in the 
specifications. 
 
Performance, Payment, and Maintenance Bond.  The successful bidder will be required to 
furnish a construction performance, payment, and maintenance bond in an amount equal 
to one hundred percent (100%) of the contract price.  Said bonds to be issued by a 
responsible surety approved by the City Council and shall guarantee the faithful 
performance of the contract and the terms and conditions therein contained and the 
maintenance of said improvements in good repair from the time of acceptance of the 
improvements by the City for not less than four (4) years. 
 
Contract Documents.  Bid documents may be obtained for free from the Engineer’s 
company website at www.fehr-graham.com. Upon accessing the website, Bidders will see 
a link titled, “Obtain Bidding Documents”.  Clicking this link will take Bidders directly to 
the Quest Network Service, and will display all projects available for bid through Fehr 
Graham. On this page, project ads will be listed in the left-hand column with project 
numbers assigned by Quest displayed. Potential Bidders can enter the Quest project 
number in the field provided to view the full ad for the Cubby Park Improvements, and 
download a complete set of bidding documents from this page. Please contact 
QuestCDN.com at (952) 233-1632 or info@questcdn.com  for assistance in free 
membership registration, downloading, and working with this digital project 
information.  Hard copies of the bid documents may also be obtained and examined from 
the office of the Engineer, 200 5th Avenue SE, Suite 100, Cedar Rapids, Iowa 52401 

http://www.fehr-graham.com/
mailto:info@questcdn.com


 

 

(phone number 319-294-6909, e-mail aries@fehr-graham.com).  There is a one hundred 
dollar ($100.00) deposit for hard copies of the plans and specifications, which will 
be refunded if returned to the Engineer in reusable condition within fourteen (14) 
days of the award of the Contract.   

   

Public Hearing on Proposed Contract Documents and Estimated Costs for Improvement.  A 
public hearing will be held by the City Council of West Branch on the proposed contract 
documents (plans, specifications and form of contract) and estimated cost for the 
improvement at its meeting at 7:00 P.M. on January 2, 2018, at City Hall, West Branch, 
Iowa. 
 
Preference of Products and Labor. By virtue of statutory authority, preference will be 
given to products and provisions grown and coal produced within the State of Iowa, and to 
Iowa domestic labor, to the extent lawfully required under Iowa statutes. 
 
General Nature of Public Improvement. 
 

The extent of the work involved consists of grading, utilities, parking lot paving, 
ballfields, playground, and pavilion for a new city park in the city of West 
Branch. 

 
PCC pavement must be constructed by a Contractor or Subcontractor on the Iowa 
Department of Transportation’s current list of pre-qualified Contractors for PCC Pavement 
or PCC Pavement-Urban. 
  
Contractor shall fully complete by November 2, 2018.  Liquidated Damages in the 
amount of $750.00 per Calendar Day will be assessed for each Calendar Day that any 
work shall remain uncompleted beyond the number of Calendar Days allowed.  
 
Plan Holders List.  The plan holders list and bid results may be viewed at Fehr Graham’s 
web site http://www.fehr-graham.com.  
 
Taxes.  All Contractors and approved Subcontractors will be provided a Sales Tax 
Exemption Certification to purchase, or withdraw from inventory, materials furnished 
under this contract.  No allowance will be made over the contract sum for any tax claims. 
 
 

 
This Notice is given by authority of the City of West Branch. 

 
____________________________________________ 

Roger Laughlin, Mayor 
 
 

Attest: ____________________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 
 

Published in West Branch Times 

mailto:mmccrary@fehr-graham.com
http://www.fehr-graham.com/


 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 

  


